To:  James P. Hoffa, IBT General President
From: Members of the Independent Review Board
Re:  Proposed Charges Against Local 430 President Kevin Cicak

Date: February 4, 2002

L INTRODUCTION

The Independent Review Board (“IRB”) refers the below report to the General President
and recommeﬁds that charges be filed against Local 430 President and principal officer Kevin
Cicak (“Cicak”) for bringing reproach upon the IBT and violating his oath of office. While
President of Local 430, located in York, Pennsylvania, Cicak colluded with the owner of
Shumaker Trucking Company (“Shumaker Trucking”) to provide union membership to some
employees and not others, at the company’s request. This was done to allow the company to
continue to make deliveries to union construction sites in New York City thereby evading IBT
Local 282's ! jurisdiction in New York.? In January 2000, Cicak entered into two contracts with
Shumaker Trucking. These two contracts were designated the New York Metro Division

company contract and the New York Metro Division subcontracted owner-operators contract

. Local 282 is a construction Local covering New York City. In 1995, Local 282,
located in Lake Success, New York, was placed in government trusteeship as a result of a civil
RICO complaint filed against the Local. This complaint detailed the Gambino LCN’s influence
over Local 282's Executive Board and their receipt, either through Local 282 officers and
members or directly from employers and companies in the industry doing business with Local 282,
of proceeds from racketeering acts involving Local 282 officers, employees and members.

2 To gain entrance to union sites, non-union companies are required to pay their
drivers the prevailing Local 282 contract wage and benefits as well as a ten percent processing fee
to the contractor. (Ex. 21)




which covered only select Shumaker Trucking drivers and subcontracted owner-operators who
made deliveries to New York City construction sites. At the tim@ Shumaker had other drivers
who did not go to New York and remained unorganized.

As Cicak knew, in November 1999, IBT Local 429 in Reading, Pennsylvania had refused
to accept dues payments from Shumaker Trucking because the company did not have a collective
bargaining agreement with Local 429, and the company illegally had been paying dues for its New
York delivery drivers so company trucks could make deliveries to New York City union
construction sites.

In May 2001, of the approximately twenty-five drivers and subcontracted owner-operators
employed by the company only four were enrolled in the union. Although aware that the
company had other drivers and subcontracted drivers, Cicak made no attempt to organize them.
Indeed, prior to Cicak meeting with the employer, Local 430 had not been designated as the
bargaining agent for the Shumaker Trucking employees. Evidencing Cicak’s knowing
participation in the scheme to evade Local 282 and to allow the employers to remain non-
unionized, Cicak failed to do the minimal steps necessary to organize the company. He failed to
obtain authorization cards from employees, to visit the company and to discuss a contract with
company employees. Indeed, Local Bylaws Article 26(A) required that whenever a collective
bargaining agreement is about to be negotiated, the Local President must hold a meeting with
persons who will be working under the agreement to determine and authorize bargaining demands
to be made. _Instead, Cicak only met with the employer and drafted contracts on terms the
employer dictated. After this, Cicak mailed three Shumaker Trucking employees authorization

cards, membership applications and ballots to vote on the contract, which he had never discussed




with them.

Cicak admitted that his actions concerning the Shumaker employees were inconsistent
with the usual procedures for organizing. Indeed, to settle a National Labor Relations Board
(“NLRB”) complaint filed by a former Shumaker Trucking employee, Shumaker Trucking
executed a settlement agreement agreeing not to recognize Local 430 as the bargaining
representative of Shumaker Trucking employees unless and until Local 430 was certified as the
collective bargaining representative of Shumaker’s employees by the NLRB. As a result of hié
conduct, it appears that Cicak violated Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Sections 7(b)(1)

and (2) of the IBT Constitution.

IL JURISDICTION
Pursuant to Article XIX, Section 11(a) of the IBT Constitution, this disciplinary matter is

within the jurisdiction of the General President. Paragraph G(e) of the March 14, 1989 Consent

Decree in United States v. International Brotherhood of Teamsters, 88 Civ. 4486 (S.D.N.Y.) and
Paragraph I(6) of the court-approved Rules and Procedures for Operation of the IRB (the “IRB
Rules”) require that within 90 days of the IRB's referral of a matter to an IBT entity, that IBT
entity must file with the IRB written findings setting forth the specific action taken and the
reasons for that action. Pursuant to Paragraph I(9) of the IRB Rules, not meeting this deadline

may be considered a failure to cooperate with the IRB.




. INVESTIGATIVE FINDINGS
A. Kevin Cicak

Cicak, the Local’s President, principal officer and business agent, joined Local 430 in
1976. In 1992, the Local’s Executive Board appointed Cicak business agent. In 1994, upon the
retirement of former Local 430 President Ken Stocker, the Local 430 Executive Board appointed
Cicak President and principal officer. (Ex. 1 at 4-8) In October 2001, Cicak was elected
President in an uncontested Local election. In June 2001, Cicak was appointed a Joint Council 53
Trustee. In December 2000, Cicak was appointed a union trustee of the Central Pennsylvania
Teamster’s Health, Welfare and Pension Funds. (Id. at 6) In 2000, Cicak’s salary from Local
430 was $64,005. (Ex. 2) Cicak’s monthly Joint Council 53 salary was $800. (Ex. 1 at 6)

Local 430 represents approximately 1,563 employees under thirty-four collective
bargaining agreements. (Ex. 2) From 1997 to 2000, the Local’s total membership declined by
533 members or nearly twenty-five percent. (Ex. 2) In addition to Cicak, the Local employed one
other full-time business agent, T. Alan Koch, and a part-time business agent, Kitty Hake. (Ex. 1 at
7-9; Ex. 2)

B. Shumaker Trucking Company

Neil Shumaker was the Chief Officer of Shumaker Trucking, located at 601 US Route
15 N, Dillsburg, Pennsylvania. David Shumaker was the company Vice President. (Ex. 3)
Shumaker Trucking’s business involved the delivery of building materials to construction sites

throughout the middle Atlantic states including union construction sites in New York City. (Ex.




1 at 12) In May 2001, the company employed at least six drivers® and approximately 19 sub-
contracted drivers who made deliveries for the company using their own equipment. (Ex. 1 at 12-
13; Ex. 4 at 9; Ex. 5)* A portion of the company’s drivers and subcontracted owner-operators
regularly made deliveries to New York City union construction sites. (Ex. 1 at 12-13)°

s Local 429 and Shumaker Trucking

Before entering into the scheme with Cicak, Shumaker had a different illegal arrangement
with Local 429. Between at least 1985 and September 2000, Local 429, located in Reading,
Pennsylvania, provided Shumaker employees with union cards without such employees being
covered under a collective bargaining agreement. The employer paid the dues for these
employees which were not deducted from their pay. ¢ For example, James Brady, Sr. (“Brady”)

testified in his October 24, 2001 sworn IRB examination that he has worked for Shumaker

8 Former company driver Victor Kresge testified that in January 2000 Shumaker
Trucking employed six to eight company drivers. (Ex. 4)

3 According to Cicak, company drivers who made New York deliveries were
grouped into the New York Metro Division of Shumaker Trucking while subcontracted owner-
operators were in the New York Metro Division Subcontracted owner-operators. Both sets of
drivers worked out of Shumaker Trucking’s only facility in Dillsburg.

» David Shumaker was also the chief officer of Masonry Transport, Inc., located at
601 US Route 15 N, Dillsburg, Pennsylvania. (Ex. 11) On October 25, 2000, David Shumaker
signed on behalf of Masonry Transport a project labor agreement with Local 430 which covered
delivery work to projects located in the greater metropolitan New York for Volmar construction
company. (Ex. 12) On October 25, 2000, Cicak signed the agreement for the Local but wrote on
the bottom of the signatory page that the agreement was subject to approval of the membership
via ballot. (Id.) According to Cicak, this agreement was never implemented because Masonry
Transport notified Local 430 it had lost the work. (Ex. 1 at 16-17) However, in a November 22,
2000 letter, Cicak advised Shumaker that none of Masonry Transport’s employees elected to
vote on the labor agreement and, without ratification, the Local could not implement the
agreement or extend membership to Masonry Transport employees. (Ex. 19)

. This is a violation of labor law. 29 U.S.C. § 186(a)

3




Trucking since 1980. (Ex. 16 at 5) Brady was a driver in the company’s Boom Division and
regularly made deliveries to New York City union construction sites. (Id. at 7) According to
Brady, Shumaker paid his Local 429 union dues and provided dues receipts for Brady from 1985
until September 2000 so that Brady could make deliveries to New York City construction sites.’
These dues were not deducted from Brady’s pay. (Ex. 16 at 10) This practice was in apparent
violation of 29 U.S.C. §186(a). Brady testified that during the period his Local 429 dues were
paid by Shumaker he did not receive any Teamster benefits. (Id. at 1-13)

Local 429 President Thomas Rochowicz testified that after he assumed Local office in
January 2000, he learned that employers who did not have collective bargaining agreements with
the Local, including Shumaker Trucking, were sending checks to the Local for dues. (Ex. 13 at

13-15) On August 24, 2000, Local 429 sent letters to those companies advising each of these

Brady testified as follows:

...[w]hen you say you received a card and dues receipts, what specifically
were you receiving?
Dues receipts from Local 429 paid by Shumaker Trucking.

Is that a piece of paper or just a card?

Yes, a piece of paper about four inches square.

When did you start receiving that?

When I went with the Boom Division. That would be 1985.
And how long did you receive that?

Until September of last year.

And how often did your receive them?

I believe he was paying those quarterly, so every four months.
And why did you get these cards, these 429 cards?

To get into the job sites in New York City.

And if you didn’t have this card, could you get into the job site in New
York City?

Not if it was union.

ZORERPRZRRORR! » L

(Ex. 16 at 10-11)
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companies that no collective bargaining agreement existed between the company and Local 429
and that unless the employees designated Local 429 as their exclusive bargaining representative
and a collective bargaining agreement was negotiated between the company and Local 429, no
further dues payments would be accepted and the membership status of employees would be
rescinded. (Ex. 14, Ex. 15); (Ex. 13 at 16)®* Shumaker Trucking and Masonry Transport did not
have collective bargaining agreements with Local 429 and received notifications that dues
payments would no longer be accepted by Local 429. (Ex. 13 at 20; Ex. 15)
Rochowicz spoke with David Shumaker after Shumaker received the notification that the

Local would no longer accept dues payments from Shumaker. Rochowicz testified :

[Shumaker] was upset that it wasn’t continuing as

to what he would have liked to have seen, what he

had in the past. I just told him that it couldn’t happen;

that we can’t have these arrangements that they had.

He wanted to continue that arrangement. I told him

no, that we would have to address his people. He

couldn’t haveit. (Ex. 13 at 20)
Rochowicz explained that Shumaker was “upset” because Shumaker “needed those union receipts
to get on job sites in New York.” (Id. at 22) Shumaker’s “arrangement” with Local 429
apparently involved paying dues for employees who were not covered by a collective bargaining

agreement so those employees could present a union card to facilitate Shumaker Trucking

deliveries to New York City union construction sites. (Ex. 16 at 10-12) These dues were not

¥ On February 20, 2001, Joint Council 53 President Frank Gillen (“Gillen”), whom the
IBT General President had appointed his personal representative to Local 429, forwarded a
report to the General President concerning Local 429. (Ex. 14 ) This report in part detailed that
at least eight companies, which did not have collective bargaining agreements with the Local or
dues checkoff authorizations, had been making dues payments to Local 429. (Id. at 5)




deducted from the employees’ pay but instead were paid by the employer in apparent violation of
29 U.S.C. §186(a).

According to Rochowicz, he did not negotiate a collective bargaining agreement with
Shumaker Trucking because the company was not in Local 429's jurisdiction and Rochowicz did
not think it was worth the effort to negotiate and maintain a contract. Rochowicz testified that he
told Shumaker “to go somewhere else” and directed him to Harrisburg [Local 776] or York
[Local 430]. (Ex. 13 at 27-28) According to Gillen’s February 20, 2001 report, Local 429
“turned over [Shumaker Trucking] to Local 430 which, to my understanding, has negotiated a
collective bargaining agreement with Shumaker. As to the other companies, Local 429 stopped
taking any dues.” (Ex. 14 at 5)

D. Local 430 and Shumaker Trucking

Cicak testified that in August 2000 Gillen informed him that Shumaker Trucking and
Masonry Transport did not have contracts with 429 but had members who were paying dues.
Gillen instructed Cicak “get a contract” with both companies (Ex. 1 at 21-22) ° Shortly after
Cicak spoke with Gillen, Shumaker contacted Cicak. According to Cicak, Shumaker wanted a

contract with Local 430 so that his employees, for whom Shumaker had paid dues to Local 429,

‘ Cicak testified to the following concerning his conversation with Gillen :

...He said that there were two units that did not have a contract where they had
members who were paying dues to 429, that he was going to cease that
relationship. He said, they are in your jurisdiction, contact these guys. And he gave
me the contact information for Shumaker.

He said, see if you can get a contract with these companies because I don’t
want these guys hurt, because they do delivering to construction sites in New
York, they won’t be able to do it anymore but we have to have a contract. (Ex. 1

at 21-22)







